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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

February 2012 Grand Jury 

~ 
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12 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, No. CR 
CR12=0415 

13 Plaintiff, 

14 v. 

15 GEORGE SAMUEL LAING, 
AUGUSTUS OHEMENG, M.D., 

16 GEORGE TARRYK, M.D., and 
EMMANUEL CHIDUEME, 

17 

18 
Defendants. 

19 The Grand Jury charges: 

1.N.121.£1'.MENI 

[18 U.S.C. § 1347: Health Care 
Fraud; 18 U.S.C. § 2(b): 
Causing an Act To Be Done] 

20 COUNTS ONE THROUGH SIX 

21 [18 u.s.c. §§ 1347, 2 (b) l 

22 A. INTRODUCTORY ALLEGATIONS 

23 At all times relevant to this Indictment: 

24 The Defendants, the Pacific Clinic, Ivy Medical Supply, and 

25 Santos Medical Supply 

26 1. Defendant GEORGE SAMUEL LAING ("LAING") was the 

27 manager and operator of the medical clinic that was located at 

28 
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1 2491 Pacific Avenue, Suite #2, Long Beach, California (the 

2 "Pacific Clinic"), within the Central District of California. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

2. Defendant AUGUSTUS OHEMENG, M. D. ("OHEMENG") was a 

physician who treated patients at the Pacific Clinic. 

3. Defendant GEORGE TARRYK, M. D. ("TARRYK") was a 

physician who treated patients at the Pacific Clinic. 

4. Defendant EMMANUEL CHIDUEME was the owner and operator 

of Ivy Medical Supply, Inc. ("Ivy"), a durable medical equipment 

("DME") supply company. 

5. From in or about June 2004 until at least in or about 

11 September 2009, Ivy was located at 1304 South Magnolia Avenue, 

12 Anaheim, California, within the Central District of California. 

13 Ivy became a Medicare provider and was issued a Medicare provider 

14 number on or about June 30, 2002. 

15 6. Santos Medical Supply ("Santos") was a DME supply 

16 company located at 2821 South Vermon·t .Avenue in Los Angeles, 

17 California, within the Central District of California. 

18 7. Ivy and Santos purported to provide to Medicare 

19 beneficiaries, among other things, enteral nutrition, which was a 

20 liquid nutritional supplement sold under brand names such as 

21 Ensure and Glucerna, and enteral nutrition feeding supply kits, 

22 which were kits that. included syringes used to administer enteral 

23 nutrition to patients who received their nutrition through a 

24 feeding tube rather than by mouth. 

25 8. Between in or about February 2005 and in or about 

26 September 2008, defendants OHEMENG and TARRYK, while practicing 

27 at the Pacific Clinic, prescribed enteral nutrition and feeding 

28 supply kits to approximately 370 Medicare beneficiaries whom 

2 
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1 defendant LAING referred to Santos. Between in or about February 

2 2005 and in or about September 2009, defendants OHEMENG and 

3 TARRYK, while practicin9 at the Pacific Clinic, prescribed 

4 enteral nutrition and feeding supply kits to approximately 367 

5 Medicare beneficiaries whom defendant LAING referred to Ivy. 

6 9. Between in or about February 2005 and in or about 

7 September 2009, based on prescriptions written by defendants 

8 OHEMENG and TARRYK, Santos and Ivy billed Medicare approximately 

9 $2,373,922 and $3,314,177, respectively, for enteral nutrition 

10 and feeding supply kits allegedly supplied to Medicare 

11 beneficiaries. Based on these claims, Medicare paid Santos and 

12 Ivy approximately $1,451,414 and $1,518,254, respectively. 

13 The Medicare Program 

14 10. Medicare was a federal health care benefit program, 

15 affecting commerce, that provided benefits to individuals who 

16 were over the age of 65° or disabled. Medicare was administered 

17 by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS"), a 

18 federal agency within the United States Department of Health and 

19 Human Services. 
' 

20 11. Individuals who qualified for Medicare benefits were 

21 commonly referred to as Medicare."beneficiaries." Each 

22 beneficiary was given a Health Identification Card Number 

23 ("HICN") unique to that beneficiary. 

24 12. DME companies, physicians, and other health care 

25 providers that provided services that were reimbursed by 

26 Medicare were referred to as "providers." 

27 13. To become eligible to participate in Medicare, Medicare 

28 required DME companies to submit an application in which the 

3 
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1 company agreed to comply with all Medicare-related laws and 

2 regulations. If Medicare approved the application, Medicare 

3 assigned the DME company a Medicare "provider number," which 

4 enabled the DME company to submit claims to Medicare for 

5 reimbursement for products provided to Medicare beneficiaries. 

6 14. Most DME providers, including Santos and Ivy, submitted 

7 their.claims electronically. 

8 15. Medicare required a claim for Medicare reimbursement of 

9 DME to set forth, among other things, the beneficiary's name and 

10 HICN, the type of DME provided to the beneficiary, the date that 

11 the DME was provided, and the name and Unique Physician 

12 Identification Number ("UPIN") and/or the National Provider 

13 Identifier ("NPI") of the physician who prescribed or ordered the 

14 DME. 

15 16. Medicare reimbursed DME providers only for OME that was 

16 medically necessary to the treatment of a beneficiary's illness 

17 or injury, was prescribed by a beneficiary's physician, and was 

18 provided in accordance with Medicare regulations and guidelines 

19 that governed whether a particular item would be reimbursed by 

20 Medicare. 

21 17. To bill Medicare, a DME provider submitted a claim 

22 (Form 1500), which Medicare required to be truthful, complete, 

23 and not misleading. In addition, when submitting a claim to 

24 Medicare, a DME provider certified that the services or supplies 

25 covered by the claim were medically necessary. 

26 18. Prior to January 2007, for some types of DME, including 

27 enteral nutrition, Medicare also required a Certificate of 

28 Medical Necessity ("CMN"), signed by the referring physician, 

4 
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1 certifying that the patient had the medical conditions necessary 

2 to justify the DME. 

3 19. For enteral nutrition to be covered by Medicare, the 

4 Medicare beneficiary who received the enteral nutrition must have 

5 had some illness or injury that prevented him from swallowing or 

6 ingesting nutrients by mouth. Medicare would not cover 

7 nutritional supplements for patients who were able to drink 

8 nutritional supplements normally. 

9 20. Patients receiving enteral nutrition through a feeding 

10 tube required approximately 1600 calories per day. Such patients 

11 generally required one syringe per day to inject the enteral 

12 nutrition into a feeding tube. 

13 B. THE FRAUDULENT SCHEME 

14 21. Beginning on or about February 28, 2005, and continuing 

15 through on or about September 30, 2009, in Los Angeles County, 

16 within the Central District of California, and elsewhere, 

17 defendants LAING, OHEMENG, TARRYK, and CHIDUEME, together with 

18 others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, knowingly, willfully, 

19 and with intent to defraud, executed and attempted to execute a 

20 scheme and artifice: (a) to defraud a health care benefit 

21 program, namely Medicare, as to material matters in connection 

22 with the delivery of and payment for health care benefits, items, 

23 and services; and (b) to obtain money from Medicare by means of 

24 material false and fraudulent pretenses and representations and 

. 25 the concealment of material facts in connection with the delivery 

26 of and payment for health care benefits, items, and services. 

27 22. The fraudulent scheme operated, in substance, in the 

28 following manner: 

5 
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a. Defendant LAING opened and operated the Pacific 

Clinic and recruited defendants OHEMENG and TARRYK as treating 

physicians for the clinic. 

b. Defendant CHIDUEME established Ivy, a retail DME 

company, and operated Ivy for the purpose of submitting claims to 

the Medicare program. 

c. Defendant LAING used patient recruiters, known as 

"marketers" or "cappers," for the purpose of bringing Medicare 

benefic.iaries to the Pacific Clinic. 

d. At the Pacific Clinic, defendants OHEMENG and 

11 TARRYK performed physical examinations and administered tests for 

12 Medicare beneficiaries. Following the examinations, defendants 

13 OHEMENG and TARRYK prescribed Medicare beneficiaries 1600 

14 calories of enteral nutrition per day "with feeding syringes." 

15 e. The prescriptions for enteral nutrition and 

16 feeding- syringes written by defendants OHEMENG and TARRYK were 

17 fraudulent in that the Medicare beneficiaries were not tube fed, 

18 did not require a full daily value of 1600 calories in ·liquid 

19 nutrition, and had no need for prescription syringes. 

20 f. Defendant OHEMENG fraudulently and falsely signed 

21 CMNs certifying that patients were tube fed and could not ingest 

22 food orally, even though, as defendant OHEMENG then well knew, 

23 the patients did not have a feeding tube and could ingest food 

24 orally. 

25 g. Once defendants. OHEMENG and TARRYK wrote the false 

26 and fraudulent enteral nutrition prescriptions, _defendant LAING 

27 referred the prescriptions to DME supply companies, including 

28 Santos and Ivy, in exchange for kickback payments. A Santos 

6 
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employee, J.G., and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, 

paid LAING approximately $300 for each enteral nutrition and 

feeding supply kit pres.cription. Defendant CHIDUEME, on behalf 

of Ivy, also made kickback payments to defendant LAING in 

exchange for the referral of enteral nutrition and feeding supply 

kit prescript.ions. 

h. Based on the false and fraudulent prescriptions 

written by defendants OHEMENG and TARRYK and referred by 

defendant LAING, one or more co-schemers at Santos submitted and 

caused to be submitted false and fraudulent claims to Medicare on 

behalf of Santos, falsely representing that Santos had supplied 

Medicare beneficiaries. with certain quantities of medically 

necessary enteral nutrition and feeding supply kits when, in 

truth and fact, the enteralnutrition and feeding supply kits 

were not medically necessary because the beneficiaries were 

drinking the liquid nutrition normally and Santos was supplying 

only a fraction of.the enteral nutrition and supply kits for 

which it was billing Medicare. 

i. Based on the false and fraudulent prescriptions 

written by defendants OHEMENG and TARRY~ and referred by 

defendant LAINGr. defendant CljIDUEME submitted and caused to be 

submitted false and fraudulent claims to Medicare on behalf of 

Ivy, falsely representing that Ivy had supplied Medicare 

beneficiaries with certain quantities of medically necessary 

enteral nutrition and feeding supply kits when, in truth and 

fact, the enteral nutrition and feeding supply kits were not 

medically necessary because the beneficiaries were. drinking the 

liquid nutrition normally and Ivy was supplying only a fraction 

7 
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1 of the enteral nutrition and feeding supply kits for which it was 

2 billing Medicare. 

3 j . Between in or about February 2005 and in or about 

4 September 2008, Santos submitted false and fraudulent claims to 

5 Medicare for enteral nutrition and enteral nutrition feeding 

6 supply kits in the amount of approximately $2,373,922. Medicare 

7 in turn paid Santos approximately $1,451,414 on those claims. 

8 k. Between in or about February 2005 and in or about 

9 September 2009, Ivy submitted false and fraudulent claims to 

10 Medicare for enteral nutrition and enteral nutrition feeding 

11 supply kits in the amount of approximately $3,314,177. Based on 

12 these claims, "Medicare paid Ivy approximately $1,518,254. 

13 c. 

14 

EXECUTION OF THE FRAUDULENT SCHEME 

23. On or about the dates set forth below, within the 

15 Central District of California and elsewhere, the defendants 

. 

16 listed below, together with others known and unknown to the Grand 

17 Jury, for the purpose of executing and attempting to execute the 

18 fraudulent scheme described above, knowingly .and willfully caused 

19 to be submitted to Medicare. the following false and fraudulent 

20 claims for payment for DME purportedly provided to the 

21 beneficiaries listed below: 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

COUNT 

ONE 

DEFENDANT 

LAING, 
OHEMENG, 
TARRYK 

CLAIM 
NUMB ERL 
DME 
COMPANY 

10712284 
7993000 

(SANTOS) 

DATE CLAIM 8MOUNT BENEFICIARY -
SUBMITTED OF CLAIM TYPE OF DME 

05/2/2007 $636.43 S.Y. -
enterai 
nutrition and 
syringes 

8 
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TWO LAING, 
OHEMENG, 
TARRYK 

10818385 7 /1/2008 
3073000 

(SANTOS) 

$636.43 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

THREE LAING, 
OHEMENG, 
TARRYK 

10824682 9/2/2008 $971.10 
7299000 

(SANTOS) 

FOUR LAING, 
OHEMENG, 
TARRYK, 
CHIDUEME 

10833785 12/02/2008 $779.65 
8672000 

FIVE 

SIX 

LAING, 
OHEMENG, 
TARRYK, 
CHIDUEME 

LAING, 
OHEMENG, 
TARRYK, 
CHIDUEME 

(IVY) 

10915680 06/05/2009 $754.50 
5900000 

(IVY) 

10924580 09/02/2009 $754. 50 
6295000 

(IVY) 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

A TRUE BILL 

/(fj 16 

17 

18 

Foreperson 

ANDRE BIROTTE JR. 
19 United States Attorney 

20 ~ q' 0 ··-," "-
21 ROBERT E. DUGDALE 

Assistant United States Attorney 
22 Chief, Criminal Division 

23 BEONG-SOO KIM 
Assistant United States Attorney 

24 Chief, Major Frauds Section 

25 CONSUELO S. WOODHEAD 
Assistant United States Attorney 

26 Deputy Chief, Major Frauds Section 

27 GRANT B. GELBERG 
Special Assistant United States Attorney 

28 Major ·Frauds Section 

9 

S. P. -
enteral 
nutrition and 
syringes 

S.L. -
enteral 
nutrition and 
syringes 

S.L. -
enteral 
nutrition and 
syringes 

s. p. -
enteral 
nutrition and 
syringes 

S.Y. -
enteral 
nutrition and 
syringes 
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OUf'LICAlf 
1 ORIGINAL 
2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

FILED 
Cl.ERi(, U.S. DISTRICT COURT 

cayENTRAL DISTRICT OF CAUFORNIA 
DEPU 

8 UNITED STATES DISTRICT.COURT 

9 FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

10 

11 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) No. CR 12-415-CAS 
) 

12 Plaintiff, ) 
) VERDICT FORM 

13 v. ) 
) 

14 AUGUSTUS OHEMENG, ·M.D., ) 
) 

15 Defendant. ) 
) 

16 ) 
) 

17 

18 COUNT ONE 

19 We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find 

20 the defendant Augustus Ohemeng: 

21 

22 GUILTY 

23 

24 NOT GUILTY 

25 of committing health care fraud as charged in Count One of the 

26 indictment. 

27 

28 

/ 
( 



ase 2:12-cr-00415-CAS Document 119 Filed 03/06/13 Page 2 of 4 Page ID #:570 

1 COUNT TWO 

2 We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find 

3 the defendant Augustus Ohemeng: 

4 

5 GUILTY 

6 

7 NOT GUILTY 

8 of committing health care fraud as charged in Count Two of the 

9 indictment. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 COUNT THREE 

16 We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find 

17 the defendant Augustus Ohemeng: 

18 

19 GUILTY 

20 

21 ---=--~D'l'- GUILTY 

22 of committing health care fraud as charged in Count Three of the 

23 indictment. 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
2 
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1 COUNT FOUR 

2 We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find 

·3 the defendant Augustus Ohemeng: 

4 

5 

6 

GUILTY 

7 NOT GUILTY 

8 of committing health care fraud as charged in Count Four of the 

9 indictment. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 COUNT FIVE 

16 We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find 

17 the defendant Augustus Ohemeng: 

18 

19 GUILTY 

20 

21 NOT GUILTY 

22 of committing health care fraud as charged in count Five of the 

23 indictment. 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

3 



.> 

ase 2:12-cr-00415-CAS Document 119 Filed 03/06/13 Page 4 of 4 Page ID #:572 

1 COUNT SIX 

2 We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find 

3 the defendant Augustus Ohemeng: 

4 

5 GUILTY 

6 

7 NOT GUILTY 

B of committing health care fraud as charged in count Six of the 

9 indictment. 

10 

11 DATED: Mar~h 0, 2013, at Los Angeles, California .. 

12 

13 REDACTED 
14 FOREPERSON OF THE JURY 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

4 



Case 2:12-cr-00415-CAS Document 161 Filed 07/22/13 Page 1 of 6 Page ID #:1031 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA vs. 

Defendant AUGUSTUS OHEMENG, M.D. 

United States District Court 
Central District of California 

Docket No. 

Augustus Kwadwo Atta Ansong Ohemeng (true 
akas: name 

Social Security No. 

(Last 4 digits) 

CR12-415-CAS 

JUDGMENT AND PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER 

ENTER 

MONTH DAY YEAR 

In the presence of the attorney for the government, the defendant appeared in person on this date. ~~0~7 __ ~2:2 __ 2~0~1~3~ 

COUNSEL I ___________ E_d_w_ar_d_R_o_b_in_s_on~,_R_e_ta_i1_1e_d/T_e_ci_a_B_ar_t_on~,_R_e_ta_in_e_d __________ _ 

(Name of Counsel) 

__ P_L_E_A _ _.I D GUILTY, and the court being satisfied that there is a factual basis for the plea. D NOLO I] 
CONTEND ERE 

FINDING I There being a finding/verdict of GUILTY, defendant has been convicted as charged of the offense(s) of: 

NOT 
GUILTY 

Health Care Fraud in violation of 18 USC 1347, as charged in Counts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 of lhe 6-Count Indictment. 
-==-=--===~ JUDGMENT The Court asked whether there was any reason why judgment should not be pronounced. Because no sufficient cause to the 
AND PROB/ contrary was shown, or appeared to the Court, the Court adjudged the defendant guilty as charged and convicted and ordered that: 

COMM Pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984, it is the judgment of the Court that the defendant is hereby committed on Counts 
ORDER 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 of the 6-Count Indictment to the custody of the Bureau of Prisons to be imprisoned for a term of: FORTY-

-----' TWO (42) MONTHS, on each of Counts 1 thmugh 6 of the Indictment, to be served concurrently. 

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $600.00, which is 
due immediately. Any unpaid balance shall be due during the period of imprisonment, at the rate of 
not less than $25.00 per quarter, and pursuant to the Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial 
Responsibility Program. 
It is ordered that the defendant shall pay restitution in the total amount of $2,964,934 pursuant to 18 
U.S.C. § 3663A. 
The amount of restitution ordered shall be paid to the victim as set forth in a separate victim list 
prepared by the probation office which this Court adopts and which reflects the Court's determination 
of the amount of restitution due to each victim. The victim list, which shall be forwarded to the fiscal 
section of the clerk's office, shall remain confidential to protect the privacy interests of the victim. 
A partial payment of $25,000.00 shall be paid immediately. The balance shall be due during the 
period of imprisonment, at the rate of not less than $25 .00 per quarter, and pursuant to the Bureau of 
Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. If any amount of the restitution remains unpaid 
after release from custody, nominal monthly payments of at least 10% of defendants's gross monthly 
income, but not less than $250.00, whichever is greater, during the period of supervised release. These 
payments shall begin thirty (30) days after the commencement of supervision. Nominal restitution 
payments are ordered as the court fihds that the defendant's economic circumstances do not allow for 
future payment of the amount ordered. 

CR-104 (03/11) JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER Page 1 of4 
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USA vs. AUGUSTUS OHEMENG, M.D. Docket No.: CR12-415-CAS 

The defendant shall be held jointly and severally liable with co-participants, George Laing, George 
Tarryk and Emmanuel Chidueme for the amount of restitution ordered in this judgment. The victim's 
recovery is limited to the amount of its loss and the defendant's liability for restitution ceases if and 
when the victims receive full restitution. 
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(f)(3)(A), interest on the restitution ordered is waived because the 
defendant does not have the ability to pay interest. Payments may be subject to penalties for default 
and delinquency pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(g). 
The defendant shall comply with General Order No. 01-05. 
All fines are waived as it is found that the defendant does not have the ability to pay a fine in addition 
to restitution. 
Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be placed on supervised release for a term of 
three (3) years. This term consists of three (3) years on each of Counts 1 through 6, all such terms to 
run concurrently, under the following terms and conditions: 

1. The defendant shall comply with the rules and regulations of the U.S. Probation 
Office, General Order 05-02, and General Order 01-05, including the three special 
conditions delineated in General Order 01-05; 

2. During the period of community supervision, the defendant shall pay the special 
assessment and restitution in accordance with this judgment's orders pertaining to 
such payment; 

3. The defendant shall apply all monies received from income tax refunds, lottery 
winnings, inheritance, judgements and any anticipated or unexpected financial 
gains to the outstanding court-ordered financial obligation; 

4. The defendant shall cooperate in the collection of a DNA sample from the 
defendant; and 

5. The defendant shall not be employed in any position that requires licensing and/or 
certification by any local, state or federal agency without prior approval of the 
Probation Officer. 

It is further ordered that the defendant surrender himself to the institution designated by the Bureau of 
Prisons on or before 12 noon, September 23, 2013. In the absence of such designation, the defendant 
shall report on or before the same date and time, to the United States Marshal located at the Roybal 
Federal Building, 255 East Temple Street, Los Angeles, California 90012. 

CR-104 (03/11) JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER Page 2 of4 
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USA vs. AUGUSTUS OHEMENG, M.D. 

Defendant is informed of his right to appeal. 
Bond is exonerated upon surrender. 

Docket No.: CR12-415-CAS 

The Court hereby recommends that defendant be designated to a facility in Southern California, or as 
close thereto as possible. 

In addition to the special conditions of supervision imposed above, it is hereby ordered that the Standard Conditions of 
Probation and Supervised Release within this judgment be imposed. The Court may change the conditions of supervision, 
reduce or extend the period of supervision, and al any time during the supe1vision period or within the maximum period 
permitted by law, may issue a warrant and revoke supervision for a violation occurring during the supervision period. 

July 22, 2013 --~~ d_ ~h______ 
U.S. District Judge/Magistrate Judge - · ·(;!' -Date 

It is ordered that the Clerk deliver a copy of this Judgment and Probation/Commitment Order to the U.S. Marshal or other qualified officer. 

Clerk, U.S. District Court 

July 22, 2013 By /SI 
Filed Date --=--,,,,.--,------------------Deputy Clerk 

CR-104(03/11) JUDGMENT & PRORATION/COMMITMENT ORDER Page 3 of4 
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USA vs. AUGUSTUS OHEMENG, M.D. Docket No.: CR12-415-CAS 

The defendant shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by tl1is court (set forth below). 

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF PROBATION AND SUPERVISED RELEASE 

While the defendant is on probation or supervised release pursuant to this judgn1ent: 

1. The defendant shall not commit another Federal, state or local 
crin1e· 

2. the d~fenclant shall not leave the judicial district without the 
written pennission of the court or probation officer; 

3. the defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by 
the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and 
complete written report within the first five days of each 
month; 

4. the defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the 
probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation 
officer; 

5. the defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet 
other fa1nily responsibilities; 

6. the defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation unless 
excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or 
other acceptable reasons; 

7. the defendant shall notify the probation officer at least 10 days 
prior to any change in residence or e1nploy1nent; 

8. the defendant shall refrain fro1n excessive use of alcohol and 
shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute, or administer any 
narcotic or other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia 
related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician; 

9. the defendant shall not frequent places where controlled 
substances are illegally sold, used, distributed or administered; 

10. the defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in 
criminal activity, and shall not associate with any person 
convicted of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the 
probation officer; 

11. the defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her 
at any tiine at home or elsewhere and shall pennit confiscation 
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation 
officer; 

12. the defendant shall notify the probation officer within 72 hours 
of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement officer; 

13. the defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an 
inforn1er or a special agent of a law enforcement agency 
without the pennission of the court; 

14. as directed by the probation officer, tlie defendant shall notify 
third parties ofrisks that may be occasioned by the defendant's 
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall 
pennit the probation officer to make such notifications and to 
conforn1 the defendant's co1npliance with such notification 
rcquire1ncnt; 

15. the defendant shall, upon release from any period of custody, 
report to the probation officer within 72 hours; 

16. and, for felony cases only: not possess a firearn1, destructive 
device, or any other dangerous weapon. 

D The defendant will also comply with the following special conditions pursuant to General Order 01-05 (set forth below). 

STATUTORY PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO PAYMENT AND COLLECTION OF FINANCIAL SANCTIONS 

The defendant shall pay interest on a fine or restitution of more than $2,500, unless the court waives interest or unless the fine or 
restitution is paid in full before Urn fifteenth (15") day after the date of the judgment pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3612(f)(l). Payments may be subject 
to penalties for default and delinquency pursuant fo 18 U.S.C. §3612(g). Interest and penalties pertaining lo restitution, however, are not 
applicable for offenses completed prior lo April 24, 1996. 

If all or any portion of a fine or restitution ordered re1nains unpaid after the termination of supervision, the defendant shall pay the 
balance as directed by the United States Attorney's Office. 18 U.S.C. §3613. 

The defendant shall notify the United States Attorney within thirty (30) days of any change in the defendant's mailing address or 
residence until all fines, restitution, costs, and special assessments are paid in full. 18 U.S.C. §3612(b)(l)(F). 

The defendant shall notify the Court through the Probation Office, and notify the United Stales Attorney of any material change in the 
defendant's economic circumstances thatmight affect the defendant's ability to pay a fine or restitution, as required by 18 U.S.C. §3664(k). The 
Court 1nay also accept such notification from lhe governn1ent or the victitn, and may, on its own motion or that of a party or the victim, adjust 
the manner of payment of a fine or restitution-pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3664(k). See also 18 U.S.C. §3572(d)(3) and for probation 18 U.S.C. 
§3563(a)(7). 

Payments shall be applied in the following order: 

CR-104 (03/11) 

1. Special assessments pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3013; 
2. Restitution, in this sequence: 

3. Fine; 

Private victims (individual and corporate), 
Providers of compensation to private victims, 
The United States as victim; 

4. Community restitution, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3663(c); and 
5. Other penalties and costs. 
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SPECIAL CONDITIONS FOR PROBATION AND SUPERVISED RELEASE 

As directed by the Probation Officer, the defendant shall provide to the Probation Officer: (1) a signed release authorizing credit report 
inquiries; (2) federal and state incon1e tax returns or a signed release authorizing lheir disclosure; and (3) an accurate financial staten1ent, with 
supporting docu1nentation as to all assets, inco1ne and expenses of the defendant. In addition, the defendant shall not apply for any loan or open 
any line of credit without prior approval of the Probation Officer. 

The defendant shall tnaintain one personal checking account. All of defendant's income, "1nonetary gains," or other pecuniary proceeds 
shall be deposited into this account, which shall be used for payment of all personal expenses. Records of all other bank accounts, including any 
business accounts, shall be disclosed to the Probation Officer upon request. 

The defendant shall not transfer, sell, give away, or othetwise convey any asset with a fair n1arket value in excess of $500 without 
approval of the Probation Officer until all financial obligations imposed by the Court have been satisfied in full. 

These conditions are in addition to any other conditions imposed by this judgment. 

RETURN 

I have executed the within Judgment and Commitment as follows: 

Defendant delivered on 

Defendant noted on appeal on 

Defendant released on 

Mandate issued on 

Defendant's appeal deterinined on 

Defendant delivered on 

at 

to 

to 

the institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons, with a certified copy of the within Judgn1enl and Com1nitmenl. 

United States Marshal 

Dale Deputy Marshal 

CERTIFICATE 

I hereby attest and certify this dale that the foregoing document is a full, true and correct copy of the original on file in 1ny office, and in 111y 
legal custody. 

Clerk, U.S. District Court 

Filed Date Deputy Clerk 
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FOR U.S. PROBATION OFFICE USE ONLY 

Upon a finding of violation of probation or supervised release, I understand that the court 1nay (1) revoke supe1vision, (2) extend the tenn of 
supervision, and/or (3) modify the conditions of supervision. 

These conditions have been read to n1e. I fully understand the conditions and have been provided a copy of thetn. 

(Signed)---------------­
Defendant 

U. S. Probation Officer/Designated Witness 

Date 

Date 
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BEFORE THE 
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
ST ATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the First Amended ) 
) 
) 

Accusation Against: 

Augustus Kwadwo Atta Ohemeng, M.D. ) Case No. ll-2012-223147 

Physician's and Su1•geon's 
Certificate No. A 48589 

Respondent 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~-> 

DECISION AND ORDER 

The attached Proposed Decision is hereby adopted as the Decision and 
Order of the Medical Board of California, Department of Consumer Affairs, 
State of California. 

This Decision shall become !lffectivc at 5:00 p.m. on July 8, 2016. 

IT IS SO ORDERED June JO, 2016. 

MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA 

By:• /j. A f: .. rn ... ,,Af.I 
Howiu·d Krauss, M.D., Chair 
Panel B 



BEFORE THE 
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENTOFCONSUMERAFFAJRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Maller of the First Amended 
Accusation Against: 

AUGUSTUS K.A. OHEMENG, M.D., 

Physician's and Surgeon's Ccttificate 
Number A 48589 

Respondent. 

Case No. 11-2012-223147 

OAH No. 2015030959 

PROPOSED UECISION 

A hearing in this matter convened before Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) Marilyn 
A. Woollard, Office of Administrative Hearings (OAH), Stale of California, in Sacramento, 
California, on February I, 2016. 

Deputy Attorney General John Gatschet represented complainant Kimberly 
Kircbmeyer, in her official capacity as Executive Director of the Medical Board of California 
(Board), Department of Consumer Affairs. 

Respondent Augustus K.A. Ohemeng, M.D., represented himself by telephone from 
Federal Prison South Camp, in Lompoc, California. 

Oral and documentary evidence was presented. At the hearing, respondent's request 
to present his dircc! testimony in writing was granted and a new bearing date was lo he 
scheduled for cross-examination. As discussed in below, complainant waived her right to 
cross-examine respondent and the parties submitted written closing argument. Pursuant to 
the March 14, 2016 Case Status Order, the record closed and the matter was submitted for 
decision on April 11, 2016. 

FACTUAL FINDINGS 

1. License Histoty: On August 21, 1990, the Board issued Physician's and 
Surgeon's Certificate Number A 48589 to Augustus K.A. Ohemeng, M.D. (respondent). On 

1 



February 25, 2014, an Automatic Suspe11sion Order - No Practice was issued. Respondent's 
certificate expired on April 30, 2014, and is currently in delinquent status. 1 

2. Accusation; On April 7, 2014, complainant filed an Accusation seeking to 
discipline respondent's license under Business and Professions Code sections 490, 2236 and 
2236.1, based upon his felony conviction for health care fraud, and under section 2234 for 
unprofessional conduct, based upon the facts and circumstances resulting in this conviction. 

3. On September 17, 2014, respondent filed his Notice of Defense and request for 
hearing. Respondent asked that any hearing not be conducted until "at least 9 months after 
Respondent is released from the Half Way House custody of the Bureau of Prisons ('BOP')." 
Based on bis anticipated release date, respondent requested that fhe hearing be scheduled "no 
earlier than June l, 20 l 8." 

4. The hearing on the Accusation was scheduled for February 1 throngh 3, 2016. 
On April 27, 2015, respondent filed a 'Motion for Continuance or in the Alternative 
Stipulation of Resolution," requesting tlmt the hearing be continued to December 5, 2016, six 
months after his anticipated release dale, to allow him time to prepare and present his defense 
that his health care fraud conviction is not substantially related to the qualifications, 
functions and duties of a physician. As an alternative, respondent offered to stipulate to the 
suspension of his license until the matter could be heard following his rel.ease from lhe BOP. 
On April 29, 2015, respondent's request to continue was denied and respondent was 
authorized to appear at the hearing by telephone. 

5. First AmendedAccusalion: On October 26, 2015, complainant filed a First 
Amended Accusation, re-alleging the original two causes for discipline and adding a third 
cause for discipline under Business and Professions Code section 2305, based on 
respondent's license discipline imposed by another stale. 

6. On January 14, 20J 6, respondent renewed his request for a continuance. of the 
hearing. On January 27, 2016, this request was denieci and respondent was authorized to 
appear al the hearing by telephone. 

7. Februmy 1, 2016 Hearing: At lhe hearing, respondent renewed his request to 
continue the hearing until after his release from incarceration. Respondent argued that he 
had not been timely served with the First Amended Accusation and had only received it on 
January 28, 2016, with complainant's exhibit packet. Complainant established that 
respondent had been properly served at his address of record witl1 the Board and that the First 
Amended Accusation, deemed controverted pursuant to Government Code section 11507, 
was hased on respondent's surrender of his New York medical license nearly two years 

1 Business and Professions Code section 2236, subdivision (a), provides that "a 
physician and surgeon's certificate shall be suspended automatically during any time that the 
holder of the certificate is incarcerated after conviction of a felony, regardless of whether the 
conviction has been appealed." 
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before. Respondent's request to submit his direct testimony in writing was granted, and a 
second hearing date was to be arranged by complainant for cross-examination. 

8. Post-Hearing Motions and Briefs; On February 8, 2016, respondent filed a 
Motion to Continue, summarizing the continuance request that was made and denied at the 
February 1, 2016 hearing. On February 10, 2016, complainant filed an opposition to this 
Motion. On February 18, 2016, a Case Status Order established dates for respondent to 
provide his written testimony and for complainant lo coordinate available dales for a 
continued hearing with BOP, Lompoc. On February 22, 2016, respondent filed his Reply to 
complainant's opposition to the motion to continue.2 

· 

On February 26, 2016, rcspo.ndent filed his "Amended Response to Case Status 
Order" (Amended Response), requesting that his prior motion be disregarded and submitling 
his written testimony in response to the First Amended Accusation. Respondent admitted 
that each cause for discipline in the First Amended Accusation was "accurate and true.'' 
Respondent requested that, as discipline, the Board suspend his licemie and bis authority to 
supervise physician assistants, "for a period terminating upon the completion of his three (3) 
year term of Supervised Release as imposed by the U.S. District Court for the Central 
District of California ... ," Respondent also submitted his sworn Declaration, discussed 
below. (Exhibit C.) 

On March 2, 2016, complainant .filed her response to respondent's Amended 
Response and waived her right lo cross-examine respondent, based upon his admissions. 
Complainant offered written closing argument and requested that respondent's license be 
revoked. A briefing schedule was established in the March 14, 2016 Case Status Order. 1n 
response lo this Order, the following written arguments were received: "Respondent's 
Response to Complainant's Response to Respondent's Amended Response to Case Sta111s 
Order" (marked for identification as Exhibit D), and Complainant's Reply to Respondent's 
Closing Arguments (marked for identification as Exhibit 10). 

Respondent's Co11viction 

9. On March 6, 2013, in the United States District Court, Central District of 
California, Case No. CR12-415-CAS, respondent was found guilty of six counts of Health 
Care Fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. sectiou J.347, a felony, after a six-day jury trial. On 
July 22, 2013, respondent was sentenced to 42 months of incarceration on each count, to be 
served concurrently, followed by three years of supervised release on eacl1 count, to run 
concurrently. Respondent was ordered to pay restitution in the total amount of $2,964,934 
and a special assessment of $600. All fines were waived. 

HJ. As set forth in the lnclictmcnt, respondent treated patients at the Pacific Clinic 
(clinic) in Long Beach. Co-defendants included the clinic's manager, another treating 
physician, and the owners and operators of two durable medical equipment (DME) supply 

2 Respondent's pre-hearing continuance requests is contained in ALJ Exhibit 1. 

3 



companies. The DME suppliers purported to provide lhe following to Medicare 
beneficiaries: enteral nutrition, a liquid nutritional supplement sold unde:r brand names (e.g., 
Ensure and Glucerna) and enteral nutrition feeding supply kits, including syringes to 
administer such nutrition to patients who received nutrition through a feeding tube rather 
than by mouth. The clinic had patient recruiters ("cappers") who brought Medicare 
beneficiaries to the clinic. 

Between February 2005 and September 2008, respondent and the other treating 
physician examined and prescribed enteral nutrition and feeding kits to over 700 patients at 
the clinic, and signed Certificates of Medical Necessity (CMN), falsely certifying that the 
patients had medical conditions which justified the DME (i.e., that they could not ingest food 
orally and required a daily value of 1,600 calories in liquid nutrition). The clinic's operator 
then referred the patients to the two DME suppliers. Using the CMNs, the suppliers billed 
Medicare for the nutrition and kits and were paid, collectively, $2,969,668. Tbe physicians 
and clinic were reimbursed by Medicare for services to patients and the clinic received a 
$300 kickback payment from the DME suppliers for each prescription. The DME suppliers 
only supplied to the Medicare beneficimies a fraction of the enteral nutrition and supply kits 
for which it billed Medicare. 

Respondent's Out-of-State License Discipline 

j 1. On November 14, 1989, the New York State Education Department issued 
License Number 180715 to respondent, which authorized him to practice medicine in New 
York State. 

12. On February 12, 2014, the New York State Board for Professional Medical 
Conduct issued a Statement of Charges against respondent il1 Case Number C0-13-03·1168-
A), charging him with a violation of New York State Education Law section 6530 (9)(a)(ii), 
"by having been convicted of committing an act constituting a crime under federal law .... " 
TI1e specific factual basis was respondent's felony Health Care Fraud conviction, described 
above. On this same date, the New York State Commissioner of Health issued an order 
suspending respondent's right lo practice medicine immediately. The matter was referred for 
a hearing before a committee on professional conduct. 

13. On June 20, 2014, the New York State Board for Professional Medical 
Conduct issued its Surrender Order (BPMC Case Number 14-156), striking respondent's 
name from the roster of physicians in the State. The Surrender Order adopted respondent's 
signed license surrender, dated May 23, 2014, by which he sought permission to surrender 
his license on the grounds that he "did not contest the First Specification" in the Statement of 
Charges; i.e., his violation of New York State Education Law section 6530 (9)(a)(ii), based 
on his federal conviction outlined above. 
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Respo11de111 's Evidence 

14. In his Declaration filed with the Amended Response, respondent apologized to 
the courts and accepted "full responsibility for [his) actions" that resulted in his conviction. 
Respondent explained that he was brought up in a Christian home in Ghana, West Africa, 
where his father was a respected ordained Presbyterian Minister. Respondent was taugl1t to 
"help those in need, especially underprivileged ones, and not to cheat or take advantage of 
these people. This kind of training in my childhood motivated me to go into medicine where 
l am able to help heal the sick and save lives which has been demonstrated throughout my 
years of practicing medicine since 1986 when I finished my training in Intern.al Medicine and 
Geriatric M1;dicine. '' 

Respondent explained that in approximately 2000, he was asked by a friend (and later 
co-defendant) to treat elderly patients who had multiple medical problems. Respondent's 
role was to supervise a physician assistant who saw the patients. At the time, respondent had 
a busy full-time job with Talbert Medical Group in Downey. He volunteered to help the 
Pacific Clinic. "Some mistakes were made on my part but I had no intention of defrauding 
Medicare or the Federal Government, and I deeply apologize for all that I was found guilty 
and sentence thereof [sic]." 

Respondent noted that, prior to his incarceration, he was "actively involved" in his 
church in Anaheim, California, "feeding the homeless and ministering to them." While in 
prison, respondent has become "deeply involved in Bible Study groups, Prayer groups, and 
helping fellow inmates who need emotional support for lost [sic] of loved ones, as well as 
prayers for healing. My experience here has, through the strength and love of God, made me 
a far better person." 

15. In his closing argument, respondent offered additional information about the 
circnmstances surrounding his crime, in order to fix the degree of discipline. First, 
respondent indicated that he practiced medicine from 1986 through 2012, without any legal 
issues or lawsu.its. Second, respondent noted that, since arriving in lhe United States on 
January 22, 1971, he has "committed no crime or been arrested for anything" until the 
present medical fraud case. Third, respondent asserted that he has paid his slate and federal 
taxes every year since arriving in lhe United States. Fourth, respondent asserted that he Jrns 
been "a good neighbor and active member of his community" before his incarceration on 
January 22, 2014. Fifth, respondent argued that his involvement with Pacific Clinic "was not 
due to making money but primarily was to take care of those elderly patients who needed 
medical assistance." He wrote: 

The actual amount of money gained over a 4 year period (2005 
-- 2009) was only $150,000, which m; proven by the government 
was but for his services provided to the clinic, with significant 
portions of the other for clinic expenses. The other 3 million 
dollars involved in the conspiracy proven, according to the 
records of the trials, to have gone to the other co-defendants. 
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Based on these circumstances, respondent requested an order of suspension or penally 
Jess than revocation. 

LEGAL CONCLUSIONS 

1. Purpose of Physician Discipline; The purpose of the Medical Practice Act is 
to assure the high quality of medical practice. (Shea v. Board of Medical Examiners (1978) 
81 Cal.App.3d 564, 574.) In exercising its disciplinary authority, the Board's highest 
priority is protection of the public. (Bus. & Prof. Code, §. 2229.) Disciplinary proceedings 
protect the public from incompetent practitioners by eliminating those individuals from the 
roster of state-licensed professionals. (Fahmy v. Medical Board of California (1995) 38 
Cal.App.4th 810, 817.) 

2. !Jurden and Standard of Proof: To revoke or suspend respondent's medical 
license, complainant must establish the allegations and violations alleged in the Accusation 
by clear and convincing evidence to a reasonable certainty. (Ettinger v. Board ofMedirnl 
Quality Assurance {1982) 135 Cal.App.3d 853, 856.) 111e requirement to produce clear and 
convincing evide11ce is a heavy burden, far in excess of the preponderance of evidence 
standard that is sufficient in most civil litigation. Clear and convincing evidence requires a 
finding of high probability. The evidence must be so clear us to leave no substantial doubt. 
It must be sufficiently strong to command the unhesitating assent of every reasonable mind. 
(Christiw1 Research Institute v. A/nor (2007) 148 Cal.App.4th 7l, 84.) 

Applicable Statutes 

3. Under Business and Professions Code section 490, subdivision (a), the Board 
may revoke or suspend a license "on the ground that the licensee has been convicted of a 
crime, if the crime is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the 
business or profession for which the iicense was issued." 

4. Business and Professions Code section 2236, subdivision (a), provides that the 
"conviction of any offense substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of a 
physician and Stlrgeon constitutes unprofessional conduct within the meaning of this chapter. 
The record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of the fact !hat the conviction 
oceuned." 

5. Business and Professions Code section 2234 provides, inter alia, that the 
Board "shall take action against any licensee who is charged with unprofessional conduct." 

6. Business and Professions Code scction 2305 provides: 

The revocation, suspension, or other discipline, restriction, or 
limitation imposed by another state upon a license or certificate 
lo practice medicine issued. by that state, or the revocation, 
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suspension, or restriction of the authority to practice medicine 
by any agency of the federal government, that would have been 
grounds for discipline in California of a licensee, under this 
chapter, shall constitute grounds for disciplinary action for 
unprofessional conduct against the licensee in this state,3 

Legal Cause to Revoke License 

7. Respondent has admitted that the First and Second Causes for Discipline in the 
First Amended Accusation are accurate and true. As set forth in the Factual Findings and 
Legal Conclusions as a whole, and particularly in Findings 9 and 10, respondent's conviction 
is substantially related to the qualifications, functions and duties of a licensed physician and 
surgeon, and constitutes unprofessional conduct. In finding respondent guilty of all six 
counts of health care fraud, the jury necessarily determined, beyond a reasonable doubt, that 
respondent "knowingly and willfully" participated in a scheme to defraud the United States 
government by falsely certifying that his patients had medical conditions which required 
treatment by enternl nutrition and that this nutrition had to be administered by use of enteral 
nutrition feeding supply kits.'1 A conviction for health care fraud is a proper basis for 
revocation, (Cf. Matanky v. Board of Medical Examiners (1978) 79 Cal.App. 3d 293, 301-
303.) Legal cause is established to revoke respondent's license under Business and 
Professions Code sections 490, subdivision (a); 2236, subdivision (a), and 2234, 

8. Respondent bas admitted that the Third Cause for Discipline in the First 
Amended Accusation is accurate and true. Respondent's surrender of his NewYorkmcdical 
license was the direct result of charges brought against him arising from his conviction, As 
set forth in the Factual Findings and Legal Conclusions as a whole, and particularly in 
Findings 11 through 13, respondent's license is subject to discipline under Business Md 
Professions Code section 2305 based on his out-of-stale discipline. 

9. Appropriate Discipline: Respondent has consistently requested that his 
license be disciplined by suspension rather than by revocation and, in closing argument, 

3 This action is also authorized by Business and Professions Code section 141, 
subdivision (a). 

4 18 U.S.C. section 1347, subdivision (a), provides: "Whoever knowingly and 
willfully executes, or attempts to execute, a scheme or artifice--(1) to defraud any health care 
benefit program; or (2) to obtain, by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, 
or promises, any of the money or properly owned by, or under the custody or control at~ any 
health care benefit program, in connection with the delivery of or payment for health care 
benefits, items, or services, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 10 
years, or both. If the violation results in serious bodily injury (as defined in section 1365 of 
this title), such person shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or 
both; and if the violation results in death, such person shall be fined under this title, or 
imprisoned for any term of years or for life, or both." 
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requested that his license suspension terminate upon completion of his post-incarceration, 
three-year supervised release (parole). Business and Profossi011s Code section 2227, 
subdivision (a), provides various forms of discipline, including by having "his or her right to 
practice suspended for a period not to exceed one year upon order of the board." (italics 
supplied.) 

Based on a review of the record as a whole and a review of the Manual of Model 
Disciplinary Orders and Disciplinary Guidelines, 11th Edition (2011) (Guidelines), 
revocation is the appropriate remedy. In pertinent part, the Guidelines recommend: (1) a 
minimum penalty of stayed revocation with five years of probation with conditions, and a 
maximum of revocation for general unprofessional conduct (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 2234); and 
(2) for conviction of a crime "substantially related lo the qualifications, functions or duties of 
a physician and surgeon and arising from or occurring during patient care, treatment, 
management or biiling," a minimum penalty of stayed revocation, one year suspension, and 
al least seven years of probation and a maximum penalty of revocation. (Bus. & Prof. Code, 
§ 2236.) For disciplinary action taken by other Sllltes, tbe penalty range is tbe same as for a 
similar offense in California. (Bus. & Prof. Code, §§141, subd. (a), 2305.) In this case, three 
separate causes for discipline have been established by clear and convincing evidence. 

A stayed revocation with probation L~ not appropriate. Respondent minimized the 
seriousness of his conduct which extended over multiple years. Respondent remains 
incarcerated for serious offenses wWch demonstrate a lack of honesty and integrity, and 
which arose directly from his conduct as a physician performing professional duties. Upon 
release from prison, respondent will be on parole for three years. Respondent will be able to 
apply for reinstatement of his license ln the fo!ure, upon a showing that .he is rehabilitated 
from the conduct that resulted in his felony conviction! 

ORDER 

Physician's imd Surgeon's Certificate Number 48589 issued to rcspor1denl 
AUGUSTUS K.A. OHEMENG, M.D., is hereby REVOKED, pursuant to Legal Conclusions 
1 thrnugh 9. 

DATED: May 10, 2016 

MARILYN A. WOOLLARD 
Administrative Law Judge 
Office of Administrative Hearings 

5 Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 2307, a person whose license has 
been revoked may file a petition for reinstatement after at least three years from the date of 
revocatiOJJ. (Bus. & Prof. Code,§ 2307, subd. (b)(l).) 
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FIRST AMENDED 
ACCUSATION 

17 Physician's and Surgeon's Cerlificate No. A 48589 

18 Respondent. 

19 

20 Complainant aLleges: 

21 PARTIES 

22 l. Kimberly Kirehmeyer (Complainant) brings this First Amended Accusation solely in 

23 her official capacity as the Executive Director of the Medical Board of California, Department of 

24 Consumer Affairs. 

25 2. On or about August 21, 1990, the Medical Board of California issued Physician's and 

26 Surgeon's Certificate Number A 48589 to Augustus K. A. Ohcmeng, M.D. (Respondent). The 

27 certificate is delinquent, having expired on April 30, 2014', and is suspended as a result of an 

28 Automatic Suspension Order issued on February 25, 2014. 
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,JURJSUICTION 

2 3. This First Amended Accusation is brought before the Medical Board of California 

3 (Board), 1 Department of Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section 

4 references are to the Business and Protessions Code unless otherwise indicated. 

s 4. Section 2227 of the Code provides that a licensee who is found guilty under the 

6 Medical Practice Act may have his or her license revoked, suspended for a period not to exceed 

7 one year, placed on probation and required to pay the costs of probation monitoring, or such other 

8 action taken in relation to discipline as the Board deems proper. 

9 s. Section 2234 of the Code, states: 

Io "The board shall take action against any licensee who is charged with unprofessional 

1 l conduct. In addition to other provisions of this article, unprofessional conduct includes, but is not 

12 limited to, the following: 

l3 "(a) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, assisting in or 

14 abetting the violation of, or conspiring to violate any provision of this chapter. 

15 

16 

"(b) 

"(c) 

Gross negligence. 

Repeated negligent acts. To be repeated, there must be two or more 

17 negligent acts or omissions. An initial negligent act or omission followed by a separate and 

18 distinct departure from the applicable standard of care shall constitute repeated negligent acts. 

19 "(I) An initial negligent diagnosis followed by an act or omission medically 

20 appropriate for that negligent diagnosis of the patient shall constitute a single negligent act. 

21 "(2) When the standard of care requires a change in the diagnosis, act, or 

22 omission that constitutes the negligent act described in paragraph (1 ), including, but not limited 

23 to, a reevaluation of the diagnosis or a change in treatment, and the licensee's conduct departs 

24 from the applicable standard of care, each depmture constitutes a separate and distinct breach of 

25 the standard of care. 

26 

27 

28 

1 California Business and Professions Code section 2002, as amended and effective January I, 2008, 
provides that, unless otherwise expressly provided, the term "[B]oard" as used in tl1e Medical Practice Act refers to 
the Medical Board of California. Refet·ences to the "Division of Medical Quality" and "Division of Licensing" set 
for!h in the Medical Practice Act arc also referable to the Medical Board of California. 
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l "(d) Incompetence. 

2 "(e) The commission of any act involving dishonesty or corruption which is 

3 substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of a physician and surgeon. 

4 "(f) Any action or conduct which would have warranted the denial of a 

5 certificate. 

6 "(g) The practice of medicine from this state into another state or country without 

7 meeting the legal requirements oftha! state or country for the practice of medicine. Section 2314 

8 shall not apply to this subdivision, This subdivision shall become operative upon the 

9 implementation of the proposed registration program described in Section 2052.5. 

10 "(h) The repeated failure by a certificate holder, in the absence of good cause, to 

11 attend and participate in an interview by the board. This subdivision shall only apply lo a 

12 certificate holder who is the subject of an investigation by the board." 

13 6. Section 2236 of the Code states: 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

"(a) The conviction ofany offense substantially related to the qualifications, 

functions, or duties of a physician and surgeon constitutes unprofessional conduct within the 

meaning of this chapter [Chapter 5, the Medical Practice Act]. The record of conviction shall be 

eonelusi ve evidence on! y of the fact that the conviction occurred. 

"(b) The district attorney, city attorney, or other prosecuting agency shall notify 

lhe Division of Medical Quality of the pendency of an action against a licensee charging a felony 

01· misdemeanor immediately upon obtaining information that the defendant is a licensee. The 

notice shall identify the licensee and describe the crimes charged and the facts alleged. The 

prosecuting agency shall also notify the clerk of the court in which tbe action is pending that the 

defendant is a licensee, and the clerk shall record prominently in the file that the defendant holds 

a license as a physician and surgeon. 

"(c) The clerk of the court in which a licensee is convicted of a crime shall, 

within 48 hours after the conviction, transmit a certified copy of the record of conviction to the 

board. The division may inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of a crime in 
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order to fix the degree of discipline or to determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially 

related to the qualifications, fonctions, or duties of a physician and surgeon. 

"( d) A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction after a plea of no lo contendere is 

deemed to be a conviction within the meaning of this section and Section 2236.1. The record of 

conviction shall be conclusive evidence of the fact that the conviction occurred." 

7. Section 2236.1 of the Code states: 

"(a) A physician and surgeon's certificate shall be suspended automatically during 

any time that the holder of the certificate is incarcerated after conviction of a folony, regardless of 

whether the conviction has been appealed. The Division of Medical Quality shall, immediately 

upon receipt of the certified copy of the record of conviction, determine whether the certificate of 

the physician and surgeon has been automatically suspended by virtue of his or her incarceration, 

and if so, the duration of that suspension. The division shall notify the physician and surgeon of 

the license suspensinn and of his or her right to elect to have the issue of penalty heard as 

provided in this section. 

"(b) Upon receipt of the certified copy of the record of conviction, if after a 

hearing it is determined therefrom that the felony of which the licensee was convicted was 

substantially related to the qtialifications, functions, or duties of a physician and surgeon, the 

Division of Medical Quality shall suspend the license until the time for appeal has elapsed, if no 

appeal has been taken, or until the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or has 

otherwise become final, and until further order of the division. The issue of substantial 

relationship shall be heard by and administrative law judge from the Medical Quality Panel sitting 

alone or with a panel of the division, in the discretion of the division. 

"(c) Notwithstanding subdivision (b), a conviction of any crime referred to in 

Section 2237, or a conviction of Section 187, 261, 262 or 288 of the Penal Code, shall be 

conclusively presumed to he substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties ofa 

physician and surgeon and nn hearing shall be held on this issue. Upon its own motion or for 

good cause shown, the di vision may decline to impose or may set aside the suspension when it 
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appears to be in the interest of justice to do so, with due regard to maintaining the integrity of and 

confidence in the medical profession. 

"(d) (I) Discipline may be ordered in accordance with Section 2227, or the 

Division of Licensing may order the denial of the license when the time for appeal has elapsed, 

the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal, or an order granting probation ls made 

suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203 .4 of 

the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not 

guilty, setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, complaint, information, or 

indictment. 

"(2) The issue of penalty shall be heard by an administrative law judge from the 

Medical Quality Panel sitting alone or with a panel of the division, in !he discretion of the 

division. The hearing shall not be had until the judgment of conviction has become final or, 

irrespective ofa subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code, at1 order granting 

probation has been made suspending the imposition of sentence; except that a licensee may, at his 

or her option, elect to have the issue of penally decided before those time periods have elapsed. 

Where the licensee so elects, the issue of penalty shall be heard in the manner described in this 

section at the hearing to determine whether the conviction was substantially related to the 

qualifications, functions, or duties of a physician and surgeon. If the conviction of a licensee who 

has made this election is overturned on appeal, any discipline ordered pursuant to this section 

shall automatically cease. Nothing in this subdivision shall prohibit the division from pursuing 

disciplinary action based on any cause other than the overturned conviction. 

"(e) ·nrn record of' the proceedings resulting in the conviction, including a 

transcript of the testimony therein, may be received in evidence. 

"(!) The other provisions of this article setting forth a procedure for the 

suspension or revocation of a physician and surgeon's certificate shall not apply to proceedings 

conducted pursuant to this section." 

Ill 

Ill 
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1 8. Section 490 of the Code states: 

2 "(a) In addition to any other action that a board is permitted to take against a 

3 licensee, a board may suspend or revoke a license on the ground that the licensee has been 

4 convicted of a crime, if the crime is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties 

5 of the business or profession for which the license was issued. 

6 "(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a board may exercise any 

7 . authority to discipline a licensee for conviction of a crime that is independent of the authority 

8 granted under subdivision (a) only ifthc crime is substantially related to the qualifications, 

9 functions, or duties of the business or profession for which the licensee's license was issued, 

lo "( c) A conviction wi1hin the meaning of this section means a plea or verdict of 

11 guilty or a conviction following a plea of no lo contendere. Any action that a board is permitted to 

12 take following the establishment of a conviction may be taken when the time for appeal has 

13 elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal, or when an order granting 

14 probatim1 is made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under 

15 the provisions of Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code. 

16 "(d) The Legislature hereby finds and declares that the application of this section 

17 has been made unclear by the holding in Petropoulos v. Depar/menr of Real Estate (2006) 142 

18 Cal.App.4th 554, and that the holding in that case has placed a significant number of statutes and 

19 regulations in question, resulting in potential harm to the consumers of California !Tom licensees 

20 who have been convicted of crimes. Therefore, the Legislature finds and declares that this section 

21 establishes an independent basis for a board to impose discipline upon a licensee, and that the 

22 amendments to this section made by Chapter 33 of the Statutes of2008 do not constitute a change 

23 to, but rather arc declaratory of, existing law." 

24 9. Section 2305 of the Code provides, in part, that the revocation, suspension, or other 

25 discipline, restriction or limitation imposed by another state upon a license to practice medicine 

26 issued by that stale, thatwould have been grounds for discipline in Califomia under the Medical 

27 Practice Act, constitutes grounds for discipline for unprofessional conduct. 

28 /// 
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l 10. Section 141 of the Code provides: 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

l l 

12 

13 

14 

"(a) For any licensee holding a license issued by a board under the jurisdiction 

of a department, a disciplinary action taken by another state, by any agency of the federal 

government, or by another country for any act substantially related to the practice regulated by 

the California license, may be a ground for disciplinary action by the respective state licensing 

board. A certified copy of the record of the disciplinary action taken against the licensee by 

another state, an agency of the federal government, or by another country shall be conclusive 

evidence of the events related therein. 

"(b) Nothing in this section shi11.I preclude a board from applying a specific 

statutory provision in the licensing act administered by that board that provides for discipline 

based upon a disciplinary actioi1 taken against the licensee by another state, an agency of the 

federal government, or another country." 

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Conviction of a Crime Substantially Related) 

15 J J. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code sections 490, 2236 and 

16 2236.1 in that he has been convicted of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, 

17 functions, or duties of a physician and surgeon. The circumstances are as follows: 

18 12. On or about May I, 2012, a six count Indictment was filed in the United States 

19 District Court of the Central District of California, in Case No. CR! 2-0415, entitled The United 

20 States ofAmerica v. George Samuel Laing, Augustus Ohemeng, ivf.D., George Tarryk, fviD., and, 

21 Emmanuel Chidueme as a result of Respondent's involvement with a clinic and two medical 

22 supply companies defrauding Medicare from 2005 through 2009. All six counts of the Indictment 

23 chru:ged him with Health Care Fraud in violation of 18 USC 1347. 

24 J 3. On or about July 22, 2013, in Case Number CR 12-0415 referenced above, before the 

25 United States District Cmntforthe Central District of California in the Western Division of Los 

26 Angeles (Hon. Christina A. Snyder), Respondent was found guilty of all six felonies. He was 

27 committed to the Bureau of Prisons for 42 months on each of the Counts, to be served 

28 
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concurrently. He is then to have supervised probation for the term of three years. Restitution W!IS 

2 ordered in the amount of $2,964,934. 

3 SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

4 (Unprofessional Conduct) 

5 14. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code section 2234 in that he has 

6 engaged in unprofessional conduct. The circumstances are as follows: 

7 15. The facts and circumstances alleged in paragraphs 11 through 13 above arc 

8 incorporated here as if fully set forth. 

9 THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

1 O (Discipline, Restriction, or Limitation Imposed by Another State) 

J l 16. On J\U1e 20, 2014, the New York State Board for Professional Medical Conduct 

12 issued a Surrender Order in a case entitled "In the Matter of Augustus Ohemeng, M.D." The 

J3 Surrender Order contains factual findings that Respondent was found guilty of six Counts of 

J 4 Health Care Fraud in violation of 18 USC§§ 1347, felonies. Respondent surrendered his New 

15 York license, and agreed that in the event he seeks re-licensurc in New York, the New York State 

16 Board for Professional Medical Conduct may deny hls application. He also agreed to pay costs. 

17 Copies ofrhe Final Decision and Order and Stipulation issued by the New York State Board for 

J 8 Professional Medical Conduct arc attached as Exhibit A. 

19 17, The facts and circumstances alleged in paragraphs 11 through 16 above are 

20 incorporated here as if folly set fo11h. Respondent's conduct and the action of the New York 

21 State Board for Professional Medical Conduct as set forth above in paragraph 16 constitutes 

22 unprofessional conduct within the meaning ofsection 2305 and conduct subject to discipline 

23 within the meaning of section 14J(a). 

24 PRAYER 

25 WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged, 

26 and that following the hearing, the Medical Board of California issue a decision: 

27 l. Revoking or suspending Physician's arid Surgeon's Certificate Number A 48589, 

28 issued to Augustus K. A. Ohemeng, M.D.; 
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2. Revoking, suspending or denying approval of Augustus K. A. Ohcmcng, M.D.'s 

2 authority to supervise physician assistants, pursuant to section 3527 of the Code; 

3 3. Ordering Augustus K. A. Ohemcng, M.D. to pay the Medical Board of California, if 

4 placed on probation, the costs of probation monitoring; and 

5 

6 

4. Taking such other and forther action as deemed necessary and proper. 

7 DATED: October 26, 2012.__. 
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10 

11 

12 
SA2014312360 

13 32205643.docx 
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Executive Director 
Medical Board of California 
Department of Consumer Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant 
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CER TIFICATIO!'::L 

STATE.OF NEW YORK ) 
ss; 

COUNTY OF RENSSELAER) 

Douglas P. Mackey, being duly sworn, deposes and says: 

l urn with the Office of Professional Medical Conduct, New York State Department of Health. I 
am an officor having legal custody of the records of the Office of Professional Medical · 
Conduct. I, hereby, certify that the enclosed documents are true copies of documents from the 
files of the Office of Professional Medical Conduct in the case of: 

Augustus KwadwoAtta Oh()meng, MD 

NYS meclical license II 180715 

(~-~\)~._?'----I--.· @\_~CV~~·· / __ . 
Douglas~ \rJ 
Pr9gram Director 

·Office of Professional Medical Conduct 

2015 
' Sworn lo b'· re t.ne this. 5 'f/...... da·y· of~ ..... - kjl···

1·/i2t 
~/,~ /)~~~-·~· ~en S. Roy ,,) 

Notary Public, Stale of New York 
Qualified In.Rensselaer counly 
Commlnslon expires August 31, 2018 
No. 47651'15 

Emplro State PlaY.a, Corning Tower, Albany, NY 12237 I h•alth.ny.gov 
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Howor.J A. Zm:kcr, MD, J.D. 
1\i:l•f'l9 Cn1Y\1T•u-s1or11v of Hu\lllh 

S110 Kelly 
I· ;;;ccv!l\l,C \);:ipwly Comtn1$S1or1ru 

CERTIFIED Mi\ll.·RETURN RECl~WI' REQUESTED 

Augustus K. Ohcmcnu, M. D. 
1162815-112 
Fl'C/So11th Camp 
3 705 West l'urm Rood 
Lompoc, CA 93436 

Duur Dr. Ohcmcng: 
Re: License No. 180715 

r.ncloscd is a copy of the Now York S1111u l3omd for l'rofcsi;innul Mcc)ical Conduct (BPlvlC) 
Order No. 14--1 56. This order und nny penally provided therein gucs into cffcc·t Juno JO, 20 I<\, 

If t·f!c pcnnlly Imposed by this Ordor i.; "rnr1·cude.1', i·cvo~ution 01· sn~pcnslon 1 yun tire 
required to dcllvcr your Uccusu und l'Cf!iatl':ition within flvc (5), chlys ol' rcccipl o!' this Order to: c/o 
l'hysiclnn Monl!ol'lng Vnit, NYS j}()fl • OPMC, Rlvu1·vit'W Ccntcl', Suitu 355, 150 l~ro11dw11y, 
Albuny, NY 12?,0•1-2119, 

r f your license is l'rumed, pluirnc rmu ovu it from the I'm me und <lllly sum! the ptu·ch nurnl riupc!' 
onwhlch yoyi:.9111110 i»Ji1iM~d. Our otl1cc Is um1hlc to storu f1·umcd lico1m1s. 

ff' thedocumunl(s) arn lost, misplaced or destroyed, you nrc rcquirod to submit to this office 1111 

nrfidavit to that effoct. Please complele uncf"slgn the affidavit before a 1101ary public nnd return it to the 
Ot'fico of Prolbssional Modicnl Cond11ct. 

Please direct any questions to: NYS D01 l • Ol'MC, Riverview Center, Sui\Q J5S, \50 
Broadway, Albany, NY l?.204-2719, tclephon.c /J (518)402-0855. 

Er1closurc 

Sinccl'ely, 

REDACTED 
Katherine A, Hnwkins, M.D., J.(), 
Executive Sccrn1~1y 
Board fOr Proli:ssionnl Medical Conduct 

Hri.~LTH.NY.GOV 
111,, 1~iok,tom/NYSDOH 
lW<I~- 1,i;orn/M11nllhNY<lov 



NEW YORK ST AT!: DEPARTMENT OF HEAL TH 
STATE BOARD FOR PHOFESSIONAL MEDICAL CONDUCT 

IN THE MA11'ER 

OF 

AUGUSTUS OHEMENG, M.D. 

SURRENDER 

ORDER 

Upon tho ~ipplicatlon of AUGUSTUS OHEMENG, M.D. to Surrenclor his lio0nso ae o 

physician i11 th0 Slalo of Now Yori<, which is mode a parl of lhill Surrnndor Ordr:r, it Is 

OflO!:oHED, thul F~espondonl's nrnnn bu :olrlcken frorn tho re>lllr:ir of physir;lans In \ho 

'.'italo of l'k:w York: it is furlhor 

01'\DE'.RED, llml lhls OrLior ~1hall bo offoclivo upon hmll<ll'ICO by \he Boord, oilhor 

• by rnnillng or n copy of thi~.; Surrendt)r Ordor, either by flrnt c:lm~l> 111;1il to 

or lly cnrlffiod m:.111 to l'i.o:;pcmr.lrmt\; r.lllorrmy, 01<. 

• upon fac:1h111lo \n.1nc;111hmiol\ lo l'fot1po111.l\H rl •>r l~m;pt;nrJont'u nllnmoy, 

ll/\ re: r;1;:0;;>01 '1. 
l'i·:l,11•.:'l'l·:I • 

. 11Tnn·1.1rCTri1i ·,:i~i1ir{1:i~; 1~\.u. 
c1i .. 1r 
filnhr Uunrtl tur l'10\l'1t>ul<>1111l Mndlc:rl Cu11llw;t 



NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEAL TH 
STATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL CONDUCT 

JN THE MATIER SURRENDGR 
OF ~· 

LJCENsE· 
L.,......~~~-A~U_G_u_s_ru_s~o_HE_M_.E~N_G_,M~.D-·~~~..........i~~ER 

AUGUSTUS OHEME!NG, M.D,, represents that all of the following statements are 

lru\l: 

That on or about November 14, 19B9 I was licensed to practice as a physician ln the 

State of New York, and Issued License No. 180715 by the New Ynrk !:;i,,1" Education 

Depmrtrnent. I 

My current addr·ess ls_ RE;Dl\CTED 
, , l. ~ ~--~--·and I 

will e,,dvlso the Director of the OffJce of Professional Medics.I Conduct of any change of 

addrees. 

I understand that the New York State Board for Professional Medioal Conduct 

(Board) has charged me with one or more speclflcations of professional misr.londuct, as set 

Forttl In a Statement of Charges, mark~d as E;xhlb!t "A"; which Js attached lo and part6f 

this Surrender of License. 

I am applying to the State Board for Profassional Medical Conduct for permission to 
surrender my license as a physician In the State of New Yori~ on the grounds that I do not 

contest the First Specification. 

I ask the Board to accept my SL1rrander of License, and I agree to .. be bound by an of 

!he terms set forth In attached Exhibit"B''. 



I understand !hat, If ths Board does not accept my Surrender of License, none of Its 

terms shall bind me or constitute <111 admission of any of tho act~1 o( misconduct alleged; 

th la application shall not be ~mod against me in any way and shall bo kept In strict 

confidfm<:e; and u·1e Board's denial shall bo without prnjudice to tho pending disciplinary 
' 

proceeoing and th0 Boord's final determination pursutint to the Public Hearth Law. 

I agree \hat, If the Board accepts my Surrondor of L100nso, tho Chair of tho Board 

shall. Issue a Surrnndor Order In accordanco wlll1 Its terms. I agre0 that this Ord0r shall 

lako offocl upon its issuancl~ by tho Boord, oilhor by mailing of a copy of tho Smrnndor 

Onleir by llrst clF.lsS mail .to me ot tho odd1usa in this Surrondor of Liconso, or to my 

llttom11y by corliflod mall, or upon facslrnllll tranomiirnion to rno or my a!tormiy, whichuvtir 

ill flr:;l. Tim 8LJ1To11dor Ordor, lhl11 i,i9roorntl11l, and nil al!rtchod oxhibils shall bo public 

documonts, wHh only po!lont idontltles, If nny, ro<Jocled. As Pllbllo docurnontn, thoy may b0 . ' 

poutocJ on lho Dopmtirmnt's wolnillo(s). OPMC Bliull roport thi<1 oc;lion to th•~ National 

Pn~ctllionrn· Doto. 13nril<, tlw1 Foll1.ir<1llon (>f Glato Modlc;.il (11.li:u·cfa, anti any othor on\ltil1s that 

tho Dlrnctor of OPMC 01·1n/I dr.iom <1pproprh:1to. 

I lHJI< tho lJonrcJ lo w;copl lhls Surrnmlor of Llmmco, which J m1bmit of rny own frn1;1 

will u11d 1wl undnr duro:m, <:ornpul!; Ion pr 1 lwtrnlnl. In 1.;on:Jir;i\)n!\IOo l)f tllri valrn.1 to rnu ol 

lho EloorrJ'11 1)or;nplnnr:n ()f thlB ~Jurrondur of L'lr.~Ornl•), allciwl111J r110 lo rnn<>lvo thlll rnnllill' 

wilhout th•:i vwluw; rbJk!J 1111<1 buruom1 ol H li•i;ulno on tllo 111011(n, I lmowlnrJIY wulv\t my 

rll)ht t1.> co1il11:1l 1110 Stu 1u11dm Clrdur fur which I 1.1pply, whtilhor nd111\n!ntr11Uvnly or j11dldnlly, 

an<I I nornu lo bo br.11rnd by th1i ~'i11rr1Jndur Clnlur. 



I 1mderstand and agree that the attorney for the Department, the Director of the . ·. 

Office o( Professional Medical Conduct and the Chair of the State Board for Professional 

Medical CondL1ct each retain complete discretion eith~r to enter into the proposed 

a~teemant and Order, based upon my application, or to decline to do so. I further. 

understand and agree that no prior- or separate written or oral communication can limit that 

discretion. 

DA reJfu1j J..?)j)/o ''t REDACTE:D 

AuG'\:itfus'oHEME~-:-@.· ·· 
RESPONDENT 



" 

The unclerslgned agree to Respondent's altacliocl Surrender of License and Order 
and to its proposed penalty, terms and conditions. 

DATE: 11.~/!t;zf-d.- HED/\CTI<:D 

JUDE El. MULVEtJESQ .. 
Associate Atlcimoy 
Bureau of Professional Medico! Conduct 

< rumAcTrm 
,..,.~ ~ " 

,<~\ .. l\\:::.K.'e::tmw. SE:f:w1s·· ... --------~--
< ..... ~ - • 
,/' Dlroclor 

Qfflcn. of Prorosoional Mcdll;til Conduct 



EXHIBIT A 



STATE OF NEW YORK : DEPARTMENT OF.HEALTH 

STP,TE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL CONDUC] 

----··---

lN THE MATTER 

OF 

AUGUSTUS OHEMENG, M.D. 
C 0-13·03·11 GB-A 

STATEMENT 

OF 

GHAl<GES 

AUOUS1US OH!i:MENG, M.O., Hosponden\, WtHl ::iulhorit.Cd lo pracllco modicli10 In 

t-.low York Slato on November 14, 196\l, by tho issuanco of llcons!) numllor Ul07'Hi by lho Now· 

York Slnto EduwJ\lon Dopor\mont. 

A. On or about July ?.:!, '.?.0'1 :J. in li1l1 Un!tocl StalO$ Distrlcl Cmirt, Conlrul Dlu\r\Gl of 

Cali!orrna, Ho:;porKlm1t was found QUilly, Oflor n trial, O( 5lx counll\ ol Hoalth Carn Fraull in 

vlola!ioll llf HI use Mi 1:wr. ii lr:hmy. i lo Wl13 r.1)l1\()nCocJ lo forty-two ('l;i) lllOlllhll lnt:orcnmlitlll, 

l'(·J!;lilu!Klll i11 tho tllllOlffll of $?..OlM.0:1,1.()0, $GOO upociol (19SODSIWH1l fr;o Nllli upqn f(1i1H1'1<'J rrnni 

inr;,·.u·coralt~}f\ SJ1al1 lHlrVl~ ll UUpUrVisutJ l-Ohn.lt}U ror \hJ'UO yo1Jf3, 

l'l.1!;po1·K1<111l vi1Jh.1\1\ll Now Yrnk ~ll<1tn Ptl11cnthl11 \.1.1w !j!IH:JO (D)(o)(il) by hovl110 \l(mn · 

i;c11w1c!t11l ol w11Hn11\<111J un at;I co11,;\!lutino n i;rhno unrlor fodm:.il lnw. 111 thlll Politi1mnl' chl1r!Jll<;; 

[')Al r:ll r:c'[j' I I .. ·- . ~() "' 
1\lt.1>111y. Mnw 't'o1l1 IO•!ll/ICTl•:IJ 

MibHAU. /\. i 11!i1irt· 
i\cllnlJ IJ()(JUlY Crn111:1•JI 
B11rnau of P1of11:1:'ll\°•l111I M11tllr:nl Cnndt11;t 



EXHIBIT "B" 

Hequiremen\s for Clgslng a Medical Pnictlge Followlog ll 
13avoc;atjon, Surrender, Limitation or Suspensjon of a Medrcal Ucense 

1. Licensee ahall lmmedlately ceasa and desist from engaging In the practice of 
medicine In i'lew York State, or under Ucensee's New York license, In 
accordance with the terms of the Order. In addition, Licensee shall refrain 
From providing an opinion as to professional practice or its· appllcatron and 
from representing that Lloensee is ellgible ta practice niediclnia. 

2. Witflin 5 days of the Order's effective dale, Licensee shall deliver licensee's 
original license. to practice medicine In New York State and current biennial 
registration to the Office of Professional Medics! Conduct (OPMC) at 
Riverview Center, 150 Broadway, Suite 355, Albany, New York 12204-2719, 

3. Within ·15 days of the Order's effective date, Licensee shall notify all patients 
of the cessation or limitation of Licens.ee's medical practice, and shall r~for all 
patients to another licensed practicing physician for continued care, as 
appropriate. Licensee shall notify, in writing, each health care plan wlth which 
the Licensee contracts or is employed, and each hospital wht?.re License'i 

· has prlvlleges, that Ucen$ee has ceased medical practice, Within 45 days of 
the Order's effective date, Licensee shall provide OPMC with written 
docwr1entation that all patients·and hospitals have bae·n notified of the 
cessation of Licensee's medical practice, 

4. Licensee shall make arrangemenls for the transfer and maintenance of all 
patient medical records. Within 30 days of the Order's effective date, 
Licensee slwll notify OPMC of tl1ese arrangements, Including the name, 
address, and telephone number of an appropriate and acceptable contact 
person who shall have access to these records. Original records shall be 
retained for at least 6 years after the last date of service rendered to a patient 
or, in the case of a minor, for at least 6 years after the last data of service or 
3 years after the patient reacl1es the age of majority, whichever time period is 
longer. Records shall be maintained in a safe and. secure place that is 
reasonably accessible to forrner patlen ls. 'The arrangements shall include 
provisions to ensure that the lnfom1ation in the reoord is kept confidential and 
is available only to authorized persons. When a patient or a patient's 
representatlve requests a copy o·f the patient's mecllcal record, or requests 
that the original medical record be sent to another h~alth care pr9vlder, a 
copy of the record shall be promptly provided or forwarded at a reasonable 
cost to the patient (not to exceed 75 cents per page.) Radiographic, 
sonographic and similar materials shall bl'J provided at cost. A qualified 
person shall not be dented access to patient information solely because of an 
inability to pay. · 



5. In the evenl that Licensee holds a Drug Enforcement Administration {DEA) 
certificate for New York State, Llconsoe shalt, wltllln i 5 days of the Ord or's 
erfective dtite, odvlse the DEA, In writing, of the liconsuro action and shnll 
suminder Licensee's DEA controlled substanco privileges for New York 
State to the DEA. Licensoe shall promptly surrender any unlmod DEA #222 
U.S. Of'ficial Order Forms Schedules 1 and 2 for New York State to the D'EA. 
All submissions to tho DEA shall be addressed to Diversion Program 
Mana~JBI', New Yori< Field Division, U.S. Drug Enforcement Adrnlnistrntlon, 
99 Ten\h Av<w1uo, Now York, NY 10011. 

6. VVilhh1 ·15 days of lhe Order's effective; d<<le, Licensee sllall rn\urn f.lny 
unused New Yori( Sta\o offlclul prnscrlplio11 forms lo lhe Burel.lll of Nr-ncotlc 
Enforcomont Qf the New Yorl~ S\al0 Deparlmont of Hoolt\1. If no o\hclr 
licensoo i'; providing sorvlcos nt L.lc<111srrn's proc\icr~ location, Li(:C)nsoo sliall 
properly dh;pose of all madicatiorm. 

7. Within 15 {li;1ys of tho Order's effective clalo, Lk:onseo sh<1ll remove from tho 
public domain any repro.serilalion \hal Licom;oo· lil o!i~1iblo to prnc\ico. 
1Twtlid110, inch;dtng <ill 1«:!<1\l)d ~lwis, aclvnrll1mmm1ls, professio11al llslin9a 
(whothor in \ol0phonn clirectorlm1, lnh>irnot t1r otherwtso), profosfliorml 
~Hcitlonory or billlngo. Llcrinmm shall not shttro, o,;i::upy. or l!Sl) offlco l'Pf\CcJ Jn 
which ::inol11ur llconso0 providon hor,11\h cnro sorvlcc:". 

\l. Licon~Ol) s111ill nol chnr~10, rncoive or oharu a11y ion 01· tJiotrib\1\lon or 
dividends lor prnr1,moionnl sorvicoi; n:indoroi.I by UconHt!O or olhorn whilo 
1-ii:orrnoo I~; burrocl from ongaglno In lho pnmllcH or 111nulcino. L.icon;rno may 
bo conipor1sallKI for lho ro::1m:mablo vnl~10 of ;mrvlGO\l lo1wfu!ly rondnrnd, l111d 
di1;lllll\'lfllnonl~; incurn.id 1m n pollm1l's bohall. plim lu lho Onkir's t-l!Tocl\v0 
cl,110. 

9. If Ucun:\<)<' i~ u nlK\nil1oldor in any profmrnionnl o;orvlcu cnrporntion 
orguni:i:orl lo on<J(ig<, In ll'lo prn1::\h;o of rmH.lldn,,, Uconsou shnll cllvon\ all 
linnndnl lnln1011\ In \IN prof<)::ml<il11.1l uorvk:o~ t:orpor1.1lln11, in UCGLJrdt·mco willl 
l'luw Y 01 \( Elui;lno:;n Corpor: 1tlon l.riw. ~)UGI! <llvD:;\it1.11'11 shull mmur wllliin iJO 
tlayi;, If lJcom:of1 1:1 l11f.l uolo nllnroholdur In •1 pru\u:,;:;l\Jnnl 1J~•1vl<:<1ll 
u1.1rpom\km. tho co1pi:m1llo111111.ml hn dlu~;olvod or noltJ wlll1l11 no th:iy11 or lhu 
On:lur'tl u[focllvu dul•l, 

lO, Failum \<.1 r.mnply wllll 11·1n nb•W() dlrocllvti11 moy rrnl\111111 ''' 1.;ivil \mni1lly o• 
1.:rirninol pu1111llkJ:J 1111 n111y bn nuthorlrnd liy {J(/l/1Jn1ln\J low. Undnr l'l.Y. l:~rlun. 
I aw~ 1;~;-1~·,It1:1 a l';l:lll!I t:'. F<1iony, l"llnlnll:ililu \iy lin1.nl:;l'Jrn11011l tor up ln •I 
y<.,;u:1, lu p1<1<:tit;<) \1111 p1ul-..1nf;i"n of rnml\r;lml whnn ;_1 P!'rlf1J:Jal<1\\11\ l\1:1mG1J h:ui 
\ionn :;1.1:;p1111tlod, mvokocl or a1111ullod. ::a1d1p1111iuhmo11\1:1 in i!1lrllllni1 lo \1111 
1 •1rn.1ll111'; lqr prufon:·;l<)lllil 1111r:, :<J11d11cl M.tl lorlll i11 l'I, Y. Pull. \ lq11llh I 11w lj 
;•·in 11, wii1d1 l11< l<1d11111111 ... nl 11p lo ~1: IOJHlll l<111md1 :11:i.1r;lllcnlln11 ul d1;11<p.1:1 



I ' 

of which the Licensee is found gu!Jty, and may include revocation of a 
suspended license. · 




